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bordering on the bathing resort, cared more about the farm-
stead than about the repair and the operation of the glori-
ous springs [4, p. 72]. It seems that despite serious negli-

a huge bathing 
[4, p. 72] in about 1570. Soon afterwards a huge remodeling 
of the baths started; in 1572 the ownership of the spring 

-
at the request of the municipal authorities, the wooden 
by granite blocks and roofed, and new baths with tubs and 
facilities to heat the water as well as the guest quarters were 
built. The bathing regulations issued in 1601 regarded not 
only the healing qualities of the thermal waters but “struc-
Despite their apparently random layout, the design of the 
buildings in the resort was functionally justified – the cen-
tral point of the baths included the water intake building 
which was connected with the ladies’ baths ( ) and 
the men’s baths ( ) erected in its “immedi-
in the bath buildings. The design of the baths was comple-
mented with boarding houses built both on the slope of 
leading to the town (Fig. 1). Most of the houses were built 
from wood, some from stone, however, usually such stone 
walls would be limited to the base course. All boarding 
houses had high gables and double-sloped roofs; some 
houses were connected with one another by galleries. After 
1580, a clock tower with the works which was a gift grant-

built on the slope of the hill which was a picturesque back-
ground of the resort’s architecture [7, p. 9]. The slender 
shape of the tower dominated over the buildings of the 
baths until 1637 when a chapel dedicated to the resort’s 
patron was built on the plateau of the hill3.

-
1625, in the quoted chronicle of Silesia, Samuel Schilling 
mentioned the existence of 
than the hot springs [12, p. 25], [4, p. 76]. Furthermore, 
Schilling encouraged to “seriously consider the possibility 

however, favor new investments and the municipal authori-
ties failed to arrange and maintain other baths. 

The land (Ober Theilheim) with the springs mentioned by 
Schilling was bought in 1637 by a private person, the 
Emperor’s advisor Johann Sigismund Hoffmann von 
Leuchtenstern4. Hoffmann commissioned the discovery and 
intake of two springs (Frederick and Mary), the warmer of 
a balneary building with baths. One of the oldest known 

3 In the years 1656–1658, a masonry chapel, which still exists 
in the place of the wooden building mentioned above [5, p. 71, 72].

4 The date of purchase of the property by Hoffmann is uncertain – 
mentions Stillfried in 1637 [13, p. 125], Burghart informs that Hoffmann 
started to study the hot springs in 1678 [4, p. 78], and Hauck claims that 
the property was bought in 1672 [1, p. 196].
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views (Fig. 2) and descriptions of that building which no 

he wrote -
instantly catches the eye; from the south it is connected by a 

[...]

can get to the bathing room and its upper ambulatory thought 

that the builders spared no expense, [which made] the bath 

 [4, p. 60, 61]. 
The architecture of New Baths is laid out on a rectan-

gular plan: baths are located in its north corner, the south-

west side was occupied by a complex of boarding houses 
-

sary household appliances appropriate for people from 
the refined estate [8, p. 131]. From south-east, the origi-
nal design was limited by a slope where ten row houses 
called Ten Commandments (Zehn Gebote) were located 
– their owners were mainly farmers, however, when there 
was a need, they offered accommodation to the guests of 
the bathing resort. Finally, a tavern (Taberne) was built 
from the north-east side around outbuildings. The middle 
of the rectangle without buildings created a square in the 
shape of the letter L whose wider arm served as a square 
in front of the entrance to Mary’s Spring building, where-
as the narrower one – to the boarding houses. Apart from 
the utilitarian qualities, the spatial design of the baths 
demonstrated aesthetic values as it provided the effective 
exposure of the most representative structure of the baths. 
with the outlet of Frederick’s Spring5 and a fountain 
decorated with the statue of Neptune. On the other hand, 
behind the tavern building on a star plan linden trees were 
planted “for people to enjoy walks if the weather was 

The spatial composition of the architecture of the 
baths, which is the result of one well planned construc-
tion operation, is considered the oldest solution of this 
kind in Silesian health resorts [2, p. 136]. 

5 The spring was named Frederick in 1865 to commemorate the 
centennial of the visit of King Frederick II to the spring.

Fig. 2. Mary’s Spring, view from the north, 1736 [4, after p. 60]
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The construction design of the spring was extended in 

Both buildings were connected by an avenue with linden 
trees6. The water from Mary’s Spring was used to fill the 
pool, whereas the water from Frederick’s Spring was 
used to fill the bathtubs; the water used in drinking ther-
apy came from both Frederick’s Spring and from the 
the Desert (which in 1838 was named Marianna spring to 
honor Princess Marianne of the Netherlands)7.

In 1694, Hoffmann von Leuchtenstern bought a few 
nearby villages such as Karpno (Karpenstein), Lutynia 
(Leuten )

Olbersdorf), and he started the construction 
of his own manor with a grange at the place where the 

6 Both the church, extended by two isles in 1690, and the thermal 
7 The waters of Mary’s Spring were thoroughly tested by the emper-

chemical composition and healing properties in the brochure published in 
1693. Kremer at the same time encouraged the application of the waters 
not only in baths but in drinking therapies as well [4, p. 80].

p. 16]. The house was connected with Mary’s Spring by 
another linden tree avenue.

The new baths became popular rather quickly; they 
were frequented by the health resort visitors and conse-
Spring. Already in 1706, the town’s authorities tried to 
Hoffmann von Leuchtenstern, however, for financial rea-

-
and a huge fire in 1739 considerably slowed down the 
development of the health resort. Furthermore, during the 
houses were turned into field hospitals and military quar-
ters [7, p. 21, 22].

– initially that fact had no effect on improvement of the 
after they were visited by King of Prussia Frederick II 

, Archiwum 
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who underwent about a two-week-long therapy in Mary’s 
baths in 1765. The actual breakthrough took place after 
Count von Hoym personally got involved into the devel-
opment of the health resort. On the initiative of the min-
ister the Baths Board was appointed that took over the 
supervision of the health resort and at the same time took 
p. 134]. The most important task of the Board was to 
cause the spatial connection of Old and New Baths that in 
the 2nd half of the 18th century were still independent 
facilities separated by farming lands, meadows and pri-
vate gardens (Fig. 3). 

It was decided then to build half way between the ther-
meetings of the quests of both baths [14, p. 15]. The build-
ing was located by the newly designed maple tree avenue 
hill below the bathhouse, a small garden was designed that 

At the same time public walks were designed in the valley 
form of a small chapel, pavilion for orchestra, and a little 
later – a Swiss chalet with a restaurant. On the initiative of 
Count von Hoym the buildings of the baths were also reno-
vated and in 1788 a new bathhouse, so called douche baths 
(Douchebad), was built over Frederick’s Spring where the 
patients were offered first in Silesia bubble and shower 
baths [1, p. 200]. In 1794, the women’s baths were extend-
the new section for the poor. 

At the end of the 18th century, in the vicinity of the springs 
– along the maple tree avenue – the first private villas were 
designed and built for recreational purposes. In 1793, the 
was built opposite the bathhouse, at the beginning of the 
avenue; in 1801, the house of general von Rothkirch’s wife 
residence –  – was built between those 

years later, in the years 1813–1815, he commissioned the 
construction of another villa located by the linden tree avenue 
going from Mary’s Spring all the way to the bridge across 
today’s Luty Stream [7, p. 36].

As a result of effort of minister von Hoym, in 1800, 
Queen Louise of Prussia laid the cornerstone for the 
construction of a new ballroom8 located in the complex 
of the bathhouse [7, p. 34]. After completion of the con-
struction works central park was extended to reach New 
Baths, connecting them with the bathhouse by a larch 
tree avenue. Thus, the idea of connecting the baths by 
recreational paths called Spa Park (Kurpark) was finally 

9.

8 The extension of the building was designed by architect Carl 
9  Today it is called John Paul II’s Park (earlier Central Park).

One of the most important events in the history of 

the baths about two weeks in August 1813. The visit of 
the crowned heads greatly affected the popularity of the 
resort, especially among aristocracy, which in turn further 
boosted the intense growth of the baths. 

In around 1820, the resort visitors were offered over 
200 rooms in 18 municipal and 28 private guest houses 
[8, p. 134]. The appearance of the resort was systemati-
cally improved by designing new areas for walks – in 

were extended in Mary’s Spring to include, apart from 
showers, an inhaling hall. Two years later, the main build-
ing of the thermal springs was covered with a new dome, 
and in 1845 another one – made of glass – was installed 
1830s, the intake of Marianne’s Spring was remodeled 
and in 1842 it was connected with a 146 meter long hall 
for walks (Albrechtshalle) located at the foot of the 
Park [11, p. 150] (Fig. 4). 

Three years later, a new masonry bathhouse was built 
in the place of the old structure made of wooden that 
burned down in 1841. Next, in the years 1848–1849, 
modern baths called Stone Baths ( ) – with tubs 
for water and peat baths – were built in the place of 
demolished inns, whose construction was commissioned 
by Hoffmann von Leuchtenstern, south-west of Mary’s 
Baths, [10, p. 31]. The new thermal springs were fed from 
Meadow Spring (Wiesenquelle) which was discovered in 
182910. In the 1850s, the bathing facilities in the baths in 
both springs were renovated or replaced with copper pip-
ing, wooden tubs were replaced with new marble ones, 
the pools were extended and their walls and floors were 

10 At present Chrobry’s Spring.

Fig. 4. Hall for walks (Albrechtshalle

Il. 4. Hala spacerowa (Albrechtshalle
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covered with marble plates. The Bathhouse was also fur-
ther extended in the years 1853–1854 by adding a reading 
room and a concert hall.

In 1861, the town’s authorities bought from a private 
person an inn (Brunnenhof) with extensive areas of old 
farmstead located on a hill bordering on Mary’s Baths 
from north-west. Former meadows and arable fields were 
converted into a park – Morning Promenade (Morgen-
Promenade) also called Mary’s Hill that was an extension 
of the area for walks in the Spa Park to the north [1, 
p. 203]. In 1865, a sanatorium for soldiers wounded in the 

) was built on the 
eastern slope of the hill, along the road leading to Lutynia 
[10, p. 33]. Later, the building would be extended into 
a complex of healthcare centers for the army, whose con-
struction began in 190011. In the 1860s, another English 

Kinder-Garten) was 
designed behind the eastern border of Mary’s Spring.

Apart from the systematic and consistent improvement 
of the conditions for providing therapies, the 19th-century 
lands around the baths where later green areas were 
designed. It seems, however, that no coherent development 
plan of the resort was prepared – consequently, the private 
houses as well as boarding houses located between the val-

11 Today the buildings designed then belong to the complex of 
Adam Spa Hospital.

Spa Park were built without any specific layout according 
to individually granted building conditions for individual 
buildings. A more comprehensive development plan for 
new building areas was prepared in 1872, when, on the 
initiative of a company set up by private investors, the 

construction of an estate of villas. An oval square was then 
laid out for a carefully designed garden with three streets 
and forest areas for walks. In time, healthcare centers and 
boarding houses were built around the square and along the 
streets (Fig. 5).

In 1877, a decision was made to demolish almost two-
hundred-year-old Mary’s Baths and replace them with 
a new building which, as in 1881 wrote Aleksander 
about the resort published in Polish, in respect of its mag-
nificence and exquisiteness it resembles old thermal 

 [10, p. 137]. The building 
on central plan in the forms of Italian renaissance still 

In 1902, the process of connecting the resort with the 
lands of Ober Thalheim village to the town began, which 
enabled the investments aimed at significantly improving 
both comfort of rest and the quality of life in the resort. 
The town got its water supply system in the years 1895–
1896, power supply system in the years 1898–1899, and 

At the beginning of the 20th century, on the lands of 
Ober Thalheim village, in the north part of the resort, 
construction of a new estate of villas was planned on the 
basis of old layouts of the village roads. However, in 
order to prevent the stylistic chaos of architecture 
a competition for the estate was announced in 1907. The 
participants of the competition were asked to prepare 
a design of five residential buildings: two detached single 

( ,

Lage-plan von Bad 
, Archiwum 

Fig. 6. Mary’s Baths, view from John Paul II’s Park
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and a multi family town house located in a compact set-
tlement area. The conditions of the competition provided 
that

 [9, p. 252]. A record 
number of designs (138) were submitted for the competi-
tion, 21 of which were granted awards, however, the new 
in the 1930s.

In 1904, it was discovered, and confirmed in 1909, that 
qualities; it was also determined that the radioactivity was 
caused by radium emanation which was applied in health 
therapies. Consequently, a pavilion with radium emanato-

-
struction of new baths started in the place of the oldest 
20th century, the Bathhouse underwent another remode-
ling, and the great ballroom was adjusted for the needs of 
cinematography in 1922.

-
ment around Mary’s Spring which took place in the 1930s. 
This is when two boarding houses and Stone Baths – located 
too high in relation to the spring that fed them, were demol-
ished [10, p. 100]. The lower section of the Karpowski 
Stream was channeled and then a new bathing center called 
Frederick was built in the lowest point near the hall for 
walks. At the same time peat baths were annexed to the 
building of Mary’s thermal springs from the north. 

The new bathing center, housing a swimming pool, 
gym, inhalatorium and pump hall, closed the area of Spa 
Park from the south-west; it was connected with Mary’s 
Spring by monumental steps built in the place of demol-
ished baths. The view on Mary’s thermal springs was thus 
exposed, and Spa Park started to serve additional function 
representative building of the resort. 

the same year – on the north side of the resort in the val-
ley of the Luty Stream – an open-air swimming pool was 
built. Later projects, regarding mainly the regulation of 
the town’s communication layout, were never carried out.

In 1940, the first comprehensive project of improve-
ment of communication both in the municipal and spa 

-
vidual streets were subject to regulation – in 1925, the 
Street) was broadened and paved. The new plan included 
a ring road going along the southern border of the town, 
and Jawornik (Fig. 7). 
star-shaped square in front of it, facilitating a better dis-
tribution of traffic to the center of the town and the resort, 
was also planned. The main flow of traffic was planned 
in the spa to go around Mary’s Hill to the south – right 
behind the building of Mary’s thermal springs – in the 
place where the Ten Commandments houses were demol-
ished and further across the undeveloped area behind 

,  

,  
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Kurbezirk Bad-Landeck
Kurbezirk Bad-Landeck

Verkehrsplan
Verkehrsplan
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